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From: Jeremiah Cromie
To: "matt@tandchomes.net"
Cc: "chris@cruseandassoc.com"; Jeremy Johnston
Subject: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 - Deemed Complete
Date: Monday, July 18, 2022 10:41:27 AM
Attachments: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 Deemed Complete.pdf

Good morning,
 
Please see the attached correspondence regarding your long plat application. I have also placed hard
copies in the mail.
 
The sign mentioned in the letter will be ready to pick at the CDS office tomorrow (7/19/22) for
posting on site with instructions.
 
Let me know if there are any questions.
 
Jeremiah Cromie
Planner II
Kittitas County 
 Community Development Services
 411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2
 Ellensburg, WA 98926
 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
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 KITTITAS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 411 N. Ruby St. Suite 2 Ellensburg WA 98926 

 cds@co.kittitas.wa.us 

 Office 509-962-7506 

 Building Partnerships - Building Communities  

 

 Community Planning       Building Inspection       Plan Review       Administration       Permit Services       Code Enforcement  
 

 NOTICE OF APPLICATION 

 

 Notice of Application:  Tuesday, July 26, 2022 

 Application Received:  Friday, June 24, 2022 

 Application Complete:  Monday, July 18, 2022 

 

 Project File Number:  LP-22-00003 

 Project Name:  Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 

 Applicant:  Haybrook Land Holdings LLC (Matt Willard) 

 

 Location: One tax parcel (639136), located just northeast of the City of Ellensburg off of Look Road in in a portion of southwest 

quarter of section 30, township 18N, range 15E, W.M., Kittitas County. The property bears Kittitas County Map number 18-19-

30030-0020. 

 

 Proposal: Matt Willard, authorized agent for Haybrook Land Holdings LLC, landowner, submitted an application for a 9-lot plat 

on 1 parcel totaling 14.09 acres of land.  The proposal includes 9 residential lots ranging in size from 1.02 acres to 3.07 acres. 

The subject parcel is zoned Urban Residential with an Urban Land Use designation. This property is located inside the 

Ellensburg Urban Growth Area. 

 

 Materials Available for Review: The submitted application and related filed documents may be examined on CDS website at     

http://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx., and by navigating to “Long Plats” then the Project File Number under 

“LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3”.  Phone: (509) 962-7506 

 

 Written Comments on this proposal can be submitted to CDS any time prior to 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, August 10, 2022. 

Any person has the right to comment on the application and request a copy of the decision once made.  

 

 Environmental Review: The County expects to issue a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for this proposal and will use 

the optional DNS process under WAC 197-11-355, meaning this may be the only opportunity for the public to comment on the 

environmental impacts of the proposal. A copy of the threshold determination may be obtained from the County once made. 

 

 Public Hearing: An open record hearing will be scheduled before the Kittitas County Hearing Examiner. A Public Hearing 

Notice will be issued establishing the date, time, and location of this hearing. 

 

 Required Permits: Preliminary and Final Plat approval, SEPA. 

 

 Designated Permit Coordinator (staff contact): Jeremiah Cromie, Staff Planner: (509) 962-7046; email at  

 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us. 
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From: Jeremiah Cromie
To: Kim Dawson; "long@kittcom.org"; Julie Kjorsvik; Toni Berkshire; Jesse Cox; Holly Erdman; Lisa Lawrence; Patti

Stacey; Kelee Hodges; Codi Fortier; "enviroreview@yakama.com"; "corrine_camuso@yakama.com";
"jessica_lally@yakama.com"; "noah_oliver@yakama.com"; "casey_barney@yakama.com"; "kozj@yakamafish-
nsn.gov"; "matj@yakamafish-nsn.gov"; "barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov"; "tebu461@ecy.wa.gov";
"lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV"; "FormerOrchards@ecy.wa.gov"; "wendy.neet@ecy.wa.gov";
"Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov"; "Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov"; "Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov";
"sepa@dahp.wa.gov"; "jorgenja@cwu.edu"; "nelmsk@cwu.edu"; Jeremy Larson; Steph Mifflin;
"russell.mau@doh.wa.gov"; "rivers@dnr.wa.gov"; "shane.early@dnr.wa.gov"; "SEPACENTER@dnr.wa.gov";
"Garren.Andrews@dnr.wa.gov"; "MARTIN.MAUNEY@dnr.wa.gov"; "brooksideconsulting@gmail.com";
"tribune@nkctribune.com"; "terry@nkctribune.com"; "mwoodruff@kvnews.com"; "mbreckenridge@kvnews.com";
"legals@kvnews.com"; "Deborah.j.knaub@usace.army.mil"; "lhendrix@usbr.gov";
"mark.a.gradwohl.civ@mail.mil"; "Kimberly.peacher@navy.mil"; "Robert.d.bright10.civ@army.mil"; Haley Mercer;
Christy Garcia; "sara@krdistrict.org"; "yusid@ci.ellensburg.wa.us"; "pubworks@ci.ellensburg.wa.us";
"comdev@ci.ellensburg.wa.us"; "energyservices@ci.ellensburg.wa.us"; "aylingj@ci.ellensburg.wa.us";
"jonesc@ci.ellensburg.wa.us"; "fwalker@eburg.wednet.edu"; "leslee.caul@esd401.org";
"cindy.ramsey@esd401.org"; Rich Elliott; "delvoj@kvfr.org"; "steve@snoqualmietribe.us";
"dahp@snoqualmietribe.us"; "adam@snoqualmietribe.us"; "guy.moura@colvilletribes.com";
"Aren.Orsen.HSY@colvilletribes.com"; "sam.rushing@colvilletribes.com"; matt.boast@kittitaspud.com;
"Brian.ingalls@pse.com"; "kdkistler@bpa.gov"; "klarned@fs.fed.us"; "ken.graham@parks.wa.gov";
"Jacob.Prilucik@wsdot.wa.gov"; "SCPlanning@wsdot.wa.gov"; "PlattsT@wsdot.wa.gov"

Cc: Matt Willard; Jeremy Johnston; Kelly Bacon (CD); Rachael Stevie (CD); "chris@cruseandassoc.com"
Subject: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 - Notice of Application
Date: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 9:35:54 AM
Attachments: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 Notice of Application.pdf

LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 SEPA Checklist.pdf

Good morning,
 
CDS is requesting comments on the following Long Plat Application: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms
Ph. 3. Links to the file materials can be found below. I have attached the Notice of Application along
with the SEPA Checklist. Kittitas County anticipates issuing a DNS for this project and is using the
optional SEPA process under WAC 197-11-355. This may be the only opportunity to comment on the
ecological impacts of this project. The comment period will end Wednesday, August 10, 2022 at 5p
(PDT). CDS will assume your agency does not wish to provide comment if not received by this
date. Comments submitted beyond this date and time will not be considered.
 
Please let me know if you have any issues accessing the materials.
 
Internal Link: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph. 3
 
External Link: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph. 3
 
If the links above do not work, please go to the CDS website at
https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx and navigate to “Long Plats” and then the
Project File Number “LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph. 3”.
 
Thank you.
 
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


 



http://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx

mailto:jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us






















































 Office: 509-962-7046
 jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us
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From: Mau, Russell E (DOH)
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH); Holly Erdman
Subject: RE: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 - Notice of Application
Date: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 10:27:35 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Mr. Cromie:

DOH has noted that there is at least one other similar submittal – “Haybrook Farms Phase 2” – so
DOH ODW does have an additional comment (or reinforce a previous comment):
 

·         The applicant needs to communicate with Ecology – even if separating their applications
into smaller pieces does not counter that all of the development under the title “Haybrook”
is a single project and drinking water use needs to be evaluated as a collective. The Hirst
decision confirmed this definition and implication of “project”.

 
Thanks,
 
 
Russell E. Mau, PhD, PE
Regional Engineer
Office of Drinking Water
Washington State Department of Health
16201 East Indiana Avenue, Suite 1500, Spokane Valley, WA  99216
Russell.Mau@doh.wa.gov
509-329-2116 | www.doh.wa.gov
 

From: Mau, Russell E (DOH) 
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 10:24 AM
To: Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Cc: Smits, Brenda M (DOH) <brenda.smits@doh.wa.gov>; Holly Erdman
<Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>
Subject: RE: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 - Notice of Application
 
Mr. Cromie:
 
The Department of Health (DOH) Office of Drinking Water (ODW) has reviewed the application and
has the following comments:
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·         The applicant identifies “well” as drinking water source under “Utilities” in the SEPA
checklist. The applicant needs to communicate with both Kittitas County Health and the
State of Washington Department of Ecology (Ecology) regarding management of
groundwater – under Ecology regulations, the development is considered a “project” and
any and all groundwater withdrawals for the 9 lot development need to be evaluated as a
collective.

·         Based on the number of lots, if developed as a public water system, this would appear to be
a Group B water system that would be evaluated entirely under the Kittitas County Health
administrative authority.

 
Those are the full set of DOH ODW comments.
 
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
 

From: Jeremiah Cromie <jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 9:36 AM
To: Kim Dawson <kim.dawson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; George Long <long@kittcom.org>; Julie Kjorsvik
<julie.kjorsvik@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Toni Berkshire <toni.berkshire@co.kittitas.wa.us>; jesse.cox
<jesse.cox@co.kittitas.wa.us>; holly.erdman <holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Lisa Lawrence
<lisa.lawrence@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Patti Stacey <patti.stacey@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Kelee Hodges
<kelee.hodges.pw@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Codi Fortier <codi.fortier@co.kittitas.wa.us>;
'enviroreview@yakama.com' <enviroreview@yakama.com>; 'corrine_camuso@yakama.com'
<corrine_camuso@yakama.com>; 'jessica_lally@yakama.com' <jessica_lally@yakama.com>;
'noah_oliver@yakama.com' <noah_oliver@yakama.com>; 'casey_barney@yakama.com'
<casey_barney@yakama.com>; 'kozj@yakamafish-nsn.gov' <kozj@yakamafish-nsn.gov>;
'matj@yakamafish-nsn.gov' <matj@yakamafish-nsn.gov>; 'barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov'
<barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov>; Petropoulos, Terra (ECY) <tebu461@ECY.WA.GOV>; White, Lori (ECY)
<lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV>; ECY RE Former Orchards <formerorchards@ECY.WA.GOV>; Neet, Wendy
(ECY) <wnee461@ECY.WA.GOV>; Downes, Scott G (DFW) <Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov>; Nelson,
Jennifer L (DFW) <Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov>; Torrey, Elizabeth M (DFW)
<Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov>; DAHP SEPA (DAHP) <sepa@dahp.wa.gov>; 'jorgenja@cwu.edu'
<jorgenja@cwu.edu>; 'nelmsk@cwu.edu' <nelmsk@cwu.edu>; Jeremy Larson
<jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Steph Mifflin <stephanie.mifflin@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Mau, Russell
E (DOH) <Russell.Mau@DOH.WA.GOV>; DNR RE AQ LEASING RIVERS
<DNRREAQLEASINGRIVERS@dnr.wa.gov>; Early, Shane (DNR) <Shane.Early@dnr.wa.gov>; DNR RE
SEPACENTER <SEPACENTER@dnr.wa.gov>; Andrews, Garren (DNR) <Garren.Andrews@dnr.wa.gov>;
MAUNEY, MARTY (DNR) <MARTIN.MAUNEY@dnr.wa.gov>; 'brooksideconsulting@gmail.com'
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From: Adam Osbekoff
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Subject: RE: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 - Notice of Application
Date: Thursday, July 28, 2022 9:28:40 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Hello Jeremiah
 
The Snoqualmie Tribe [Tribe] is a federally recognized sovereign Indian Tribe.  We were signatory to
the Treaty of Point Elliott of 1855; we reserved certain rights and privileges and ceded certain lands
to the United States. As a signatory to the Treaty of Point Elliot, the Tribe specifically reserved
among other things, the right to fish at usual and accustomed areas and the “privilege of hunting
and gathering roots and berries on open and unclaimed lands” off-reservation throughout the
modern-day state of Washington.
 
The Snoqualmie Indian Tribes Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation have cultural
resource concerns regarding the above mentioned project but defer to more proximate tribes.
 
Thank you
 
Adam Osbekoff
 

From: Jeremiah Cromie [mailto:jeremiah.cromie@co.kittitas.wa.us] 
Sent: Tuesday, July 26, 2022 9:36 AM
To: Kim Dawson <kim.dawson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; George Long <long@kittcom.org>; Julie Kjorsvik
<julie.kjorsvik@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Toni Berkshire <toni.berkshire@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Jesse Cox
<jesse.cox@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Holly Erdman <Holly.erdman@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Lisa Lawrence
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
<barh@yakamafish-nsn.gov>; 'tebu461@ecy.wa.gov' <tebu461@ecy.wa.gov>;
'lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV' <lowh461@ECY.WA.GOV>; 'FormerOrchards@ecy.wa.gov'
<FormerOrchards@ecy.wa.gov>; 'wendy.neet@ecy.wa.gov' <wendy.neet@ecy.wa.gov>;
'Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov' <Scott.Downes@dfw.wa.gov>; 'Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov'
<Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov>; 'Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov' <Elizabeth.Torrey@dfw.wa.gov>;
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     Public Works & Utilities Department 
        Natural Gas Division 

    501 North Anderson Street; Ellensburg, WA 98926 
Ph: (509) 962-7124 Fax: (509) 925-8662 

www.ci.ellensburg.wa.us 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
Date:  July 29, 2022 
 
To:  Jeremiah Cromie, Kittitas County Community Development 
 
From:  Darin Yusi, Gas Engineer 
 
Re:  Proposed Look Road Subdivision 
 
The following are the City of Ellensburg Gas Division comments for the proposed subdivision off 
Look Road (Parcel #639136). 
 
Natural Gas: 
The applicant’s parcel is within the City’s Natural Gas Territory.  There is a natural gas utility map 
attached showing the existing natural gas infrastructure in the vicinity of the proposed subdivision. 
 
There are no requirements currently in regard to the proposed subdivision and creation of lots.  If there 
is a desire to serve the lots with natural gas or at least install the infrastructure for future homeowner 
choice, the developer will need to work with the City Gas Division to coordinate the construction and 
layout of the gas facilities. 
 
To look ahead at the City’s natural gas applications and construction details, please go to the following 
link:  https://www.ci.ellensburg.wa.us/1033/Natural-Gas-Utility. 
 
For any further questions or clarifications regarding these comments or the proposed project, please 
contact myself at 509-962-7229. 
 
Remember to always call 811 (the One-Call Underground Utility Notification Center) prior to any 
excavation on private property or in the right-of-way. 
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WORK PHONE
07/29/2022xxx Look Road

CONTACT NAME

PROJECT ADDRESS DATE

509-962-8242Haybrook Land Holdings llc

DISCLAIMER:
THE CITY OF ELLENSBURG ENERGY SERVICES DEPARTMENT CANNOT VERIFY THE ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES
REPRESENTED ON THIS PLAN. THEY ARE DISPLAYED FOR EASE OF PLANNING AND INSTALLATION AND ARE BASED
UPON BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE. CONTRACTORS AND DEVELOPERS SHOULD REFER TO CIVIL PLAN FOR MOST
CURRENT DESIGN REVISION AND CALL 811 BEFORE YOU DIG.

QUESTIONS: DARIN YUSI 509-962-7229

Meadowbrook Ln

L
o
o
k  

R
d

Sanders Rd
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From: Nelson, Jennifer L (DFW)
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Subject: RE: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 - Notice of Application
Date: Friday, August 5, 2022 3:18:17 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Good afternoon Jeremiah,
WDFW has reviewed the application materials and we appreciate the designation of Wilson Creek,
the riparian management zone and the floodplain on the plat map.  Wilson Creek is an important
tributary to the Yakima River and it provides habitat for numerous species of native fish and wildlife. 
Technical and financial support is available to help landowners enhance the riparian habitat on their
property and WDFW would be pleased to assist the landowners in this if they’re interested.
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment and please feel free to reach out with any questions or
concerns.
Jen
 
Jennifer Nelson
Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife
Habitat Program
Ellensburg, WA 98926
(509) 961-6639 Mobile
 
 
 

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
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From: sara@krdistrict.org
To: Jeremiah Cromie
Subject: RE: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 - Notice of Application
Date: Monday, August 8, 2022 12:43:34 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside the Kittitas County network. Do not click
links, open attachments, fulfill requests, or follow guidance unless you recognize the sender
and have verified the content is safe.

 

Hi Jeremiah,
 
Haybrook Landholdings (Phase 3) lies within the KRD and will be required to meet the KRD General
Subdivision Guidelines. For a copy of the subdivision guidelines please contact the KRD office.
 
Thank you,
 
 
Sara Vickers
Lands Clerk/RRA Specialist
Kittitas Reclamation District
509-925-6158
www.kittitasreclamationdistrict.org
 
 

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
'sepa@dahp.wa.gov' <sepa@dahp.wa.gov>; 'jorgenja@cwu.edu' <jorgenja@cwu.edu>;
'nelmsk@cwu.edu' <nelmsk@cwu.edu>; Jeremy Larson <jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us>; Steph
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State of Washington • Department of Archaeology & Historic Preservation 

P.O. Box 48343 • Olympia, Washington  98504-8343 • (360) 586-3065 

www.dahp.wa.gov 

 

 
August 9, 2022 
 
Jeremiah Cromie 
Planner II 
Kittitas County   
411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2 
Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 
In future correspondence please refer to: 
Project Tracking Code:        2022-08-05281 
Property: Kittitas County_Haybrook Farms Phase 3 (LP-22-00003) 
Re:          Survey Requested 
 
Dear Jeremiah Cromie: 
 
Thank you for contacting the Washington State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) and 
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP) and providing documentation 
regarding the above referenced project. These comments are based on the information 
available at the time of this review and on behalf of the SHPO in conformance Washington State 
law. Should additional information become available, our assessment may be revised. 
 
Our statewide predictive model indicates that there is a high probability of encountering cultural 
resources within the proposed project area. This is due, in part, to the proximity of the proposed 
project area to Wilson Creek, a resource that may have been important to Native Americans 
and/or settlers in the past. Further, the scale of the proposed ground disturbing actions would 
destroy any archaeological resources present. Identification during construction is not a 
recommended detection method because inadvertent discoveries often result in costly 
construction delays and damage to the resource. Therefore, we recommend a professional 
archaeological survey of the project area be conducted and a report be produced prior to 
ground disturbing activities. This report should meet DAHP’s Standards for Cultural Resource 
Reporting. 
 
We also recommend that any historic buildings or structures (45 years in age or older) located 
within the project area are evaluated for eligibility for listing in the National Register of Historic 
Places on Historic Property Inventory (HPI) forms. We highly encourage the SEPA lead agency 
to ensure that these evaluations are written by a cultural resource professional meeting the SOI 
Professional Qualification Standards in Architectural History. 
 
Please note that the recommendations provided in this letter reflect only the opinions of DAHP. 
Any interested Tribes may have different recommendations. We appreciate receiving any 
correspondence or comments from Tribes or other parties concerning cultural resource issues 
that you receive. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this project. Please ensure that the DAHP Project 
Tracking Number is shared with any hired cultural resource consultants and is attached to any 

Index #20

https://dahp.wa.gov/sites/default/files/CR%20Update%20Nov%202021.pdf
https://dahp.wa.gov/sites/default/files/CR%20Update%20Nov%202021.pdf
https://www.nps.gov/history/local-law/arch_stnds_9.htm
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

  

communications or submitted reports. Please also ensure that any reports, site forms, and/or 
historic property inventory (HPI) forms are uploaded to WISAARD by the consultant(s).   
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Sydney Hanson 
Local Government Archaeologist 
(360) 280-7563 
Sydney.Hanson@dahp.wa.gov 
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COMMUNITY PLANNING  BUILDING INSPECTION  PLAN REVIEW  ADMINISTRATION  PERMIT SERVICES  CODE ENFORCEMENT  

KITTITAS COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
411 N. Ruby St., Suite 2, Ellensburg, WA  98926 

CDS@CO.KITTITAS.WA.US 

Office (509) 962-7506 
      “Building Partnerships – Building Communities” 

 

                                                                                                                                                                         

August 09, 2022 

 

 

Jeremiah Cromie

Planner II 

Kittitas County CDS 

411 N. Ruby Street; Suite 2 

Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 

 

RE:  LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms- Building & Fire Code Comments 

 

Jeremiah, 

CDS Building division requires that all new structures proposed be permitted and built to the current Kittitas County 

adopted building codes at the time of plan submittal for construction with the County.  

 

All accesses and roads to be compliant with the 2018 IFC including Appendix D and Kittitas County Public Works 

requirements. Fire flow requirements are per 2018 IFC including appendices B & C. As development progresses, 

please contact the Kittitas County Fire Marshal’s office regarding fire flow and hydrant requirements. 

  

 
Regards, 

 

 

Jeremy Larson 

 

Jeremy Larson 

Building Official 

 

Kittitas County Community Development Services 

411 N Ruby Street Suite 2 

Ellensburg, WA 98926 

jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us 

P:  509.962.7559 

 

 

 
cc:     
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M E M O R A N D U M  

  

 

TO:    All Staff  

FROM:   Public Works Plan Review Team  

DATE:   August 9, 2022 

SUBJECT:  LP-22-0003 Haybrook Farms Ph3 

  

ACCESS 1. Timing of Improvements  

a. This application is subject to the latest revision of the Kittitas County 

Road Standards, dated 2015. The following conditions apply and must 

be completed prior to final approval of this project.  A performance 

guarantee may be used, in lieu of the required improvements, per the 

conditions outlined KCC 12.01.150.  

2. Driveways:   

a. A driveway shall serve no more than four tax parcels. See Kittitas 

County Road Standards, 2015 edition.  

b. New access easements shall be a minimum of 30’ wide. The roadway 

width shall have a minimum width of 12’ if the length of the driveway 

is less than 150’, or 16’ if the length of the driveway is more than 

150’.   

c. Driveways longer than 150’ in length are required to provide a Fire 

Apparatus Road Turnaround meeting the requirements of appendix D 

in the International Fire Code.  

d. Maximum grade shall be 10%.  

e. Crushed surface depth per WSDOT standards.   

f. Maintenance of driveway approaches shall be the responsibility of the 

owner whose property they serve.  The County will not maintain 

accesses.  

3. Private Roads   

a. Private roads serving any of the lots within this development shall be 

inspected and certified by a licensed professional engineer for 

conformance with current Kittitas County Road Standards, 2015 

edition.  Kittitas County Public Works shall require this road 

certification to be completed prior to final approval of the project. If a 

performance guarantee is used in lieu of the required improvements, 

        

   

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS   
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the private road shall be constructed and certified to comply with the 

minimum requirements of the International Fire Code prior to 

issuance of a building permit.   

b. Roads longer than 150’ in length are required to provide a Fire 

Apparatus Road Turnaround meeting the requirements of appendix D 

in the International Fire Code.   

c. Maintenance of driveway approaches shall be the responsibility of the 

owner whose property they serve. The County will not maintain 

accesses.   

   

4. Urban Growth Area:   

a. Roads proposed within the UGA shall conform and support the road 

system or grid, Transportation Plan and Comprehensive Plan of the 

affected city.  

b. Roads constructed within the UGA shall comply with the road 

standards of the affected city or Kittitas County Road Standards, 

whichever is more stringent. The city shall have the final approval of 

the road alignments, geometry, and construction requirements.  

c. Utilities constructed within the UGA shall comply with the 

requirements of the affected city.  

  

 

ENGINEERING Applicant should be aware that:  

1. If over 100 CY of material are displaced during construction, a grading 

permit shall be required. If over 500 CY, an engineered grading permit 

shall be required. If the applicant plans on applying for final plat prior to 

building, a bond for construction shall be required.  

2. Prior to the final platting process, a Civil Review of the plans will be 

required by Public Works. If the applicant is getting an engineered grading 

permit, the Civil Review will be included in that permit.  

3. The applicant will need to certify the road prior to Public Works issuing 

access permits.  
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SURVEY 1. Submitted application does not meet the requirements of WAC:332-130-

145 in regards to vertical datum, basis of bearing, benchmarks used, 

source of contours, etcetera.  

2. There is no Engineer of Record on the face of the Prelim Plat.  

  

Prior to approval of the Final Plat, the following issues will need to be addressed:   

1. The legal description is not coincident with the title report.  

2. Controlling corners will need to be noted, and property corners set.  

3. The boundaries along Wilson Creek will need to be delineated.  

4. The access easements will need to be labelled, and the new access 

easement outside the plat boundaries will need to be dedicated via 

separate easement.  

5. Lot closures will need to be submitted.  

 

FLOOD The applicant has correctly noted that a portion of lots 4, 5, and 6 of the proposed 

plat would be located in the 100-year floodplain.   

   

Per KCC 14.08.220, all subdivisions as well as new development shall:  

1. Be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.  

2. Have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water 

systems located and constructed to minimize flood damage.  

3. Have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood damage.  

4. Where base flood elevation data has not been provided or is not available 

from another authoritative source, it shall be generated for subdivision 

proposals and other proposed developments containing greater than 50 

lots or 5 acres (whichever is lesser) and shall be included as part of the 

application and shall be noted on the final mylar.  

5. All subdivisions shall show on the face of both the preliminary and final 

plat, for either short or long plats, the boundary of the 100-year floodplain 

and floodway.  
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WATER 

MITIGATION 

& METERING  

The following comments outline the requirements for legal availability of water 

and metering for the proposed long plat:  

  

The applicant must provide legal water availability for all new uses on the 

proposed lots of this project, which can be provided through mitigation 

certificates (see conditions for final plat approval and recording).   

  

Final Plat Review & Recording (Prior to Final Plat Approval)  

  

Prior to final plat approval and recording, the following conditions shall be met:  

  

In accordance with KCC Chapter 13.35.027, the applicant shall provide one of the 

following documents before final plat approval:  

1. A letter from a water purveyor stating that the purveyor has adequate 

water rights and will provide the necessary water for the new use;  

2. An adequate water right for the proposed new use; or  

3. A certificate of water budget neutrality from the Department of Ecology or 

other adequate interest in water rights from a water bank.  

   

All applicants for land divisions shall also submit information on "proximate 

parcels" held in "common ownership" as those terms are defined in WAC 173-

539A-030 and otherwise demonstrate how the proposed new use will not violate 

RCW 90.44.050 as currently existing or hereafter amended.  

   

Failure to obtain mitigation before commencement of an activity requiring 

mitigation shall be a code violation subject to enforcement under Title 18 KCC.  

  

Final Plat Notes  

The following notes shall be placed on the face of the plat:  

   

C-1  “Metering is required for all new uses of domestic water for residential well 

connections and usage must be recorded in a manner consistent with Kittitas 

County Code Chapter 13.35.027 and Ecology regulations.”  

  

C-2  “The approval of this division of land provides no guarantee that use of water 

under the ground water exemption (RCW 90.44.050) for this plat or any portion 

thereof will not be subject to curtailment by the Department of Ecology or a court 

of law.”  
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From: Jeremiah Cromie
To: Matt Willard; "chris@cruseandassoc.com"
Cc: Jeremy Johnston
Subject: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 - Transmittal of Comments
Date: Tuesday, August 16, 2022 12:40:43 PM
Attachments: LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 Transmittal of Comments.pdf

LP-22-00003 Haybrook Farms Ph 3 Combined Comments.pdf

Good afternoon,
 
Please see the attached correspondence regarding your long plat application (LP-22-00003 Haybrook
Farms Ph. 3). I have placed hard copies in the mail as well.
 
Let me know if you have any questions.
 
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
 
 


 



https://www.ci.ellensburg.wa.us/1033/Natural-Gas-Utility





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



mailto:Jennifer.Nelson@dfw.wa.gov
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



mailto:sara@krdistrict.org

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


 
 



mailto:jeremy.larson@co.kittitas.wa.us
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


 


 


  


  





		State Dept. Of Health - Office of Drinking Water Comments 7-26-22

		Snoqualmie Tribe Comments 7-28-22

		City of Ellensburg - Natural Gas Division Comments 7-29-22

		Kittitas County Public Health Comments 8-5-22

		WDFW Comments 8-5-22

		KRD Comments 8-8-22

		DAHP Comments 8-9-22

		CDS Building and Fire Code Comments 8-9-22

		Kittitas County Public Works Comments 8-10-22
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“Building Partnerships – Building Communities” 

 

Notice of Public Hearing and SEPA Action 

Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 Preliminary Plat 

LP-22-00003  

 
To:   Applicable Agencies 

  Parties of Record 

  Applicant 

 

From:   Jeremiah Cromie, Planner II 

 

Date:  September 1, 2022 

 

Subject: Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 Preliminary Plat (LP-22-00003)  

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that the Kittitas County CDS and Kittitas County Hearings Examiner will meet at 

6:00 p.m. on September 22, 2022 to conduct a virtual public hearing to consider the Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 Long 

Plat (LP-22-00003). The proposal includes creating 9 residential lots ranging in size from 1.02 acres to 3.07 acres 

on parcel 639136. The subject parcel is zoned Urban Residential with an Urban Land Use designation and is 

within the Inner Turning Zone of the Airport Overlay Zone. This property is located inside the Ellensburg Urban 

Growth Area. Kittitas County CDS has issued an MDNS SEPA determination for the project.  The complete 

record for this application, including the SEPA determination, may be viewed by going to this website: 

https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx and clicking on “Long Plats” and then “LP-22-00003 

Haybrook Farms Ph. 3”. The applicant is requesting approval of a 9 lot Plat under KCC 16.12. 

 

Interested parties may also attend the hearing by using one of the methods listed below: 

 

1. By online Webex video conferencing: Meeting Link: 

https://kittitascounty.webex.com/kittitascounty/j.php?MTID=e17233163c7bfd4f276ad76630e94

ae96 

 

2. By https://kittitascounty.webex.com or the Cisco Webex App on your phone or electronic device:  

Meeting Number: 2483 873 6055 Meeting Password: Hearing 
 

3. By telephone: 1-408-418-9388, Meeting Number: 2483 873 6055 

 

Instruction for how to participate in virtual public hearings may be found at: 

https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/uploads/documents/cds/Virtual%20Public%20Hearing%20Instructions.pdf.   

  

NOTICE IS HEREBY given that pursuant to WAC 197-11-355, Kittitas County Community Development 

Services did on, September 1, 2022, issue a Final Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) for the 

Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 Long Plat application (LP-22-00003). 

 

The lead agency for this proposal has determined that it does not have a probable significant adverse impact on 

the environment.  An environmental impact statement (EIS) is not required under RCW 43.21C.030(2)(c).  This 

decision was made after review of a SEPA environmental checklist, other information on file with the lead agency 

Index #26
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and after considering existing laws and regulations that will be implemented by the applicant as part of the permit 

process.  This information is available to the public on request.   

 

This MDNS is issued after using the optional DNS process in WAC 197-11-355.  There is no further comment 

period on the DNS.  Any action to set aside, enjoin, review, or otherwise challenge this administrative SEPA 

action on the grounds of noncompliance with the provisions of Chapter 43.21C RCW shall be commenced on or 

before September 16, 2022 by 5:00 PM.  

 

Anyone with an interest in this matter is urged to attend this noticed virtual hearing where testimony will be 

taken. Written comments will also be received. Documents may be viewed at 

https://www.co.kittitas.wa.us/cds/land-use/default.aspx, under “Long Plats” under file number “LP-22-00003 

Haybrook Farms Ph. 3,” or at Kittitas County Community Development Services, 411 N. Ruby St. Suite 2, 

Ellensburg, WA 98926 prior to the hearing.  

 

Contact: Jeremiah Cromie, Planner II 

(509) 962-7046, jeremiah.cromie@co.kttitas.wa.us  

Index #26
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Kittitas County
Hearing 

Examiner 
Public Hearing

Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 Long Plat

(LP-22-00003)

September 22, 2022
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HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3
LP-22-00003

• Haybrook Land Holdings LLC submitted an application for a 9-lot plat on 1 

parcel of land totaling 14.09 acres of land that is zoned Urban Residential 

within Urban Growth Area of the City of Ellensburg. The property is also 

located within the Inner Turning Zone of the Airport Overlay Zone for Bowers 

Field. The proposed lots vary in size from 1.02 acres to 3.07 acres.

Project Description

Index #28



HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3 SITE 

Access is from Look Road

Site 

Location

±
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HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3 SITE 
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HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3 PRELIMINARY PLAT DRAWING
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HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3 ZONING AND LAND 
USE

Index #28



HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3 APPLICATION TIMELINE

• Application submitted June 24, 2022.

• Application determined complete on 

July 18, 2022.

• Site posted on July 20, 2022.

• Notice of Application (NOA) was issued 

on July 26, 2022. The notice was sent to 

to State and Local Agencies and 

neighbors within 500 feet of the 

proposal’s contiguous tax parcels and 

published in the County newspaper of 

record in accordance with KCC 15A.
Index #28



HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3 APPLICATION TIMELINE 
(CONT.)

• The comment period ended on 

August 10, 2022

• Comments were received from 

various agencies

• No public comments were received

Index #28



HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3
LP-22-00003

• A SEPA checklist was submitted with the application and processed concurrently under the 

optional DNS process in WAC 197-11-355.

• CDS performed a Critical Areas Review of the parcel and identified Wilson Creek as a Type 

S (Shoreline) stream as well as floodplain on the property.

• The applicant submitted a Critical Areas Report with the application that also identified 

Wilson Creek as a Type S stream under the County’s shoreline code. There were no wetlands 

found on the property.

• After considering comments from various agencies, CDS issued a Mitigated Determination of 

Non-Significance (MDNS) on September 1, 2022. The mitigated conditions included 

denotation of Wilson Creek on final surveys as well as the floodplain. It also included an 

inadvertent discovery plan for cultural resources

Environmental Review
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Washington State Department of Health – Office of Drinking Water (DOH-ODW)

• DOH-ODW commented that the applicant needs to communicate with Ecology even if separating their 

projects into smaller pieces as all of the development would be considered a single project and drinking 

water use needs to be evaluated as a collective

• They commented that a Group B water system would be evaluated entirely under the Kittitas County 

Health administrative authority

Snoqualmie Tribe

• Snoqualmie Tribe commented that they have cultural resource concerns but defer to more proximate 

tribes.

Agency Comments
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City of Ellensburg- Natural Gas Division

• The City of Ellensburg Natural Gas Division mentioned that the applicant’s parcel is within the City’s 

Natural Gas Territory. They commented that there are no requirements in regards to the proposed 

subdivision and if there is a desire to have the lots be served by Natural Gas that the applicant will 

need to work with them to coordinate the construction and layout of gas facilities.

Washington State Department of Fish & Wildlife (WDFW)

• WDFW appreciated the designation of Wilson Creek and floodplain on the plat map. They commented 

on the importance of Wilson Creek and said that support is available to the landowners to enhance 

riparian habitat.

Agency Comments
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Kittitas County Public Health (KCPH)

• KCPH commented on the proposed Group B well and septic systems. They mentioned that the applicant 

has to prove legal and physical availability for all new uses of water on the proposed lots and that soil 

logs need to be done for individual sewage disposal systems are contemplated.

Kittitas Reclamation District (KRD)

• KRD commented that the property lies within the KRD district and will be required to meet KRD General 

Subdivision Guidelines.

❖Staff has conditioned this proposal to require a Group B water system be installed and soil logs done prior to 

final plat approval. Staff also conditioned this proposal to meet KRD General Subdivision Guidelines.

Agency Comments
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Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP)

• DAHP Commented that there is a high probability of encountering cultural resources on the site due to 

the proximity of Wilson Creek. They recommended a professional archaeological survey be done.

Community Development Services – Building and Fire (CDS Building)

• CDS Building Department commented that all new structures must be permitted and built to the current 

adopted building codes at the time of plan submittal. They also commented that all accesses and roads 

need to be compliant with the 2018 IFC including Appendix D and Public Works requirements. They 

mentioned that fire flow requirements are per the 2018 IFC including appendices B & C and to contact 

the Fire Marshal’s office regarding fire flow and hydrant requirements. 

❖Staff has conditioned this proposal to meet fire code requirements and an inadvertent discovery plan from the 

SEPA MDNS

Agency Comments
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Kittitas County Public Works (KCPW)

• KCPW commented that this application is subject to the latest revision of the Kittitas County Road 

Standards, dated 2015. They gave conditions about driveways, grading, road certification and talked 

about roads and utilities within the Urban Growth Area (UGA). They also mentioned about flood, survey 

notes and water mitigation

❖Staff has conditioned this proposal to meet UGA road requirements and conditions related to driveways and 

grading as well as survey, flood and water mitigation concerns.

Agency Comments
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No public comments were received for this proposal

Public Comments
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• All of the comments received were transmitted to the applicant at the end of 

the comment period on 8-16-22. The applicant responded only to Public 

Works comments about road access and standards within the Urban Growth 

Area and Airport Overlay District.

• Staff has reviewed all of the application materials and comments received. 

The proposal was reviewed for its consistency with Kittitas County Code (KCC) 

and the Comprehensive Plan. The specifics of the review can be found in the 

Staff Report provided in your review materials.
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Staff finds the project to be consistent, as conditioned, with:

• Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan

• KCC Title 12 Roads and Bridges

• KCC Title 15 Environmental Policy

• KCC Title 16 Subdivisions

• KCC Title 17 Zoning

• KCC Title 17A Critical Areas

• KCC Title 17B Shorelines

• KCC Title 20 Fire & Life Safety

Consistency
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Staff recommends APPROVAL of the proposed Long Plat subject to the 

conditions identified in the Staff Report.

Recommendation
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

Fax (509) 962-7682 “Building Partnerships – Building Communities” 

STAFF REPORT 

HAYBROOK FARMS PH. 3 LONG PLAT (LP-22-00003) 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Requested Action:  Matt Willard, authorized agent for Haybrook Land Holdings LLC, landowner, submitted an 

application for a 9-lot plat on 1 parcel totaling 14.09 acres of land.  The proposal includes 9 residential lots 

ranging in size from 1.02 acres to 3.07 acres. The subject parcel is zoned Urban Residential in the Inner Turning 

Zone of the Bowers Airport Overlay zone. It contains an Urban Land Use designation. This property is located 

inside the Ellensburg Urban Growth Area. 

Location: Parcel 639136, located just northeast of the City of Ellensburg off of Look Road in in a portion of 

southwest quarter of section 30, township 18N, range 15E, W.M., Kittitas County. The property bears Kittitas 

County Map number 18-19-30030-0020. 

II. SITE INFORMATION

Total Project Size: 14.09 acres 

Number of Lots: 9  

Domestic Water: Group B Well 

Sewage Disposal: Septic  

Fire Protection:  Kittitas Valley Fire & Rescue (Fire District 2) 

Irrigation District: Kittitas Reclamation District 

Site Characteristics:  

North: Some residential  

South: Residential/Some farmland  

East: Primarily undeveloped farmland 

West: Farming/Some Residential (4 lot short plats have been approved to the west) 

Access:  Primary access to the site will be via a private drive off of Look Road. 

Zoning and Development Standards:  The subject property is located approximately 2.2 miles northeast of 

Downtown Ellensburg and has a zoning designation of Urban Residential within the Airport Overlay Zone. It is 

also within the City of Ellensburg’s Urban Growth Area. 

The purpose and intent of Urban Growth areas is to provide areas that are suitable for urban densities as 

determined by the sponsoring city’s ability to provide urban services, and to allow for alternative methods of 

development that allows for infill and development at urban levels. The minimum density in urban growth areas 

requires 4 units per acre but this provision does not apply to the Airport Overlay zone as seen in KCC 17.11.050. 

The intent of the Urban Residential zoning classification is to provide for and protect areas for home-site 

development and/or urban levels of development where municipal services can be provided or is already 

available. The minimum lot size does not apply to properties in the Airport Overlay Zone as seen in KCC 

17.22.030. 

The purpose and intent of the Airport Overlay Zone is to establish an airport overlay zoning district on properties 
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located on, adjacent to, and in the vicinity of public-use airports including Easton State, Cle Elum Municipal, 

DeVere Field and Kittitas County Airport (Bowers Field), in order to protect the health, welfare, safety, and 

quality of life of the general public, property owners, airport operators, and aviation community; and also to 

ensure compatible land uses in the vicinity of the affected environments of the airport overlay zoning district, with 

regulations set forth in the Adopted 14 CFR Federal Aviation Regulations Part 77. The property is located within 

the Inner Turning Zone of the Airport Overlay. For lands that are inside the inner turning zone that are zoned 

urban residential, the average density needs to be one unit per one acre of property per KCC 17.58.050 (2). Since 

the airport overlay district is more restrictive, its standards apply. 

 

The proposed lots average to 1.38 acres after removing critical areas, which is consistent with the intent of KCC 

17.58.050(2).  

 

Preliminary Plats:  The plat drawing submitted with the current application was reviewed under the current 

version of KCC 16.12 Preliminary Plats.  

 

III. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW 

 

Deemed Complete: A Long Plat Application and SEPA Checklist were submitted to Kittitas County Community 

Development Services on June 24, 2022 (Index #1 & 4). The application was deemed complete on July 18, 2022 

(Index #8).  

 

Notice of Application:  The site was posted pursuant to KCC 15A.03.110 on July 20, 2022 (Index #10). One 

posting site was established off of Look Road. A Notice of Application was mailed to all state and local 

agencies/departments with potential interest in the project as required by KCC 15A.03.060, as well as to adjacent 

landowners located within five hundred (500) feet of any portion of the boundary of the proposal's contiguous tax 

parcels on July 26, 2022 and noticed in the local county paper of record on July 26, 2022 (Index #13). The 

comment period for this notice ended on August 10, 2022. All comments were transmitted to the applicant on 

August 16, 2022 (Index #23) 

 

IV.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 

The Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan designates the proposal site as an “Urban Growth Area”.  Kittitas 

County has established the following goals and policies to guide activities that are designated in these lands.  

These goals and policies were developed in response to identified needs within the county, and support the 

County Wide Planning Policies:  

 

LU-G4: Maintain a flexible balance of land uses which will protect, preserve, and enhance the rural character, 

historical forest lands, agricultural industries, mineral lands, and high-quality environment. 

 

Consistency Statement 

The proposed plat has an average density of 1 unit/acre preserving some of the rural character in the Urban 

Growth Area while not creating a ton of units in an airport zone. 

 

LU-P1: Minimize the cost of providing public services and utilities by directing urban growth and development to 

areas where public roads and services can support such growth. 

 

Consistency Statement 

The short plat will be served by an existing county road (Look Rd). 

 

LU-P21: The County will continue to implement the following Federal Aviation Administration safety zones 

within the airport overlay zone(s) to protect airport operations and reduce safety risks: Inner Safety Zone; Inner 

Turning Zone; Outer Safety Zone; Sideline Zone; and Traffic Pattern Zone 
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Consistency Statement: 

The plat will be conditioned to include a plat note that notices all potential buyers that the property is within the 

Airport Overlay Zone and likely to have noise and activities associated with aircraft in the vicinity of the 

property. 

 

LU-P67:  The county should consider notifying all property owners within the Airport Overlay Zone of airport 

activities 

 

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

 

CDS staff reviewed the project for consistency with the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan as described 

above. CDS finds the proposed development consistent with the Goals and Policies of the Kittitas County 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

V. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

 

A critical areas review of the parcel was conducted by CDS staff. There is a Type S Stream (Wilson Creek) has a 

100’ buffer. A Critical area report done by Sewall Wetland Consulting Inc. was submitted to the County with the 

application materials on June 24, 2022 (Index #5). This report indicated no jurisdictional wetlands and recognized 

Wilson Creek as a Type S stream with a 100-foot setback. 

 

Kittitas County CDS issued an MDNS for this project on September 1, 2022 (See Index #25) after utilizing the 

optional DNS process under WAC 197-11-355. The SEPA MDNS includes conditions that include denoting on 

the plat maps the stream and floodplain. The MDNS also includes a condition that if any development leads to 

inadvertent discovery of cultural or archaeological material, work will immediately be stopped, and the proper 

authorities shall be contacted. 

 

At the time of this writing, the SEPA MDNS decision has not been appealed. 

 

VI. AGENCY AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Applicable agencies, adjacent property owners, and interested parties have been given the opportunity to review 

this proposal and have been notified of the Public Hearing. Timely comments were received from the following 

agencies: Department of Health – Office of Drinking Water, Snoqualmie Tribe, City of Ellensburg – Natural Gas 

Division, Kittitas County Public Health, Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife, Kittitas Reclamation 

District, Department of Archaeology & Historic Preservation, Kittitas County Community Development Services 

– Building Department, and Kittitas County Public Works. (Index #s 14-22).   

 

Below are summaries of the substantive agency comments submitted. For full context and details please see Index 

#s 14-22 

 

Department of Health – Office of Drinking Water (DOH-ODW): DOH-ODW commented that the applicant needs 

to communicate with Ecology even if separating their applications into smaller pieces as it would all be a single 

project and drinking water needs to be evaluated as a collective. Based on the number of lots, they mentioned that 

if it is a Group B public water system, that would be evaluated entirely under Kittitas County Health. 

 

Applicant response: “No response from applicant” 
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Staff response: CDS Staff transmitted these comments to the applicant and has conditioned this proposal 

to get a Group B Well from Department of Health with a State Issued ID #.  

 

Snoqualmie Tribe: Snoqualmie Tribe commented that they have cultural resource concerns about the project but 

defer to more proximate tribes. 

 

Applicant response: No response from applicant 

 

 Staff response: CDS staff provided comment to the applicant and conditioned this proposal to have an 

inadvertent discovery plan. 

 

City of Ellensburg – Natural Gas Division: The City of Ellensburg Natural Gas Division mentioned the parcel is 

within the City’s natural gas territory. They also mentioned that there are currently no requirements in regard to 

the proposed subdivision and creation of lots. If the developer desires to serve the lots with natural gas, the 

developer will need to work the City gas division to coordinate the construction and layout of gas facilities. 

 

 Applicant Response: No response from applicant 

 

Staff response: CDS Staff provided comments to the applicant. 

 

Kittitas County Public Health (KCPH): KCPH Submitted comments in regards to on-site septic systems and a 

Group B Water System. They mentioned that the applicant must prove legal and physical availability of water for 

all new uses of water on the proposed lots. They mentioned a soil log must be done on each lot prior to final 

approval and that the Group B Water system must be approved by them prior to final approval. They also 

mentioned about required plat notes. 

 

Applicant Response: No response from applicant 

 

Staff response: Kittitas County Community Health Department requirements are part of the conditions of 

this plat and will need to be addressed prior to final approval. 

 

Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife: The Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife (WDFW) provided 

comments appreciating the designation of Wilson Creek on the plat and how Wilson Creek provides habitat. They 

mentioned that technical and financial support is available to enhance riparian habitat on their property and 

WDFW can help with this if they are interested.  

 

Applicant Response: No response from applicant 

 

Staff response: These comments have been provided to the applicant. The applicant does not need to 

enhance the creek as part of this plat. 

 

Kittitas Reclamation District (KRD): KRD commented that the proposal lies within the KRD boundaries and will 

be required to meet the KRD General Subdivision Guidelines. They mentioned that they can get a copy of the 

guidelines from the KRD office. 

 

Applicant Response: No response from applicant. 

 

Staff response: Staff has conditioned the plat to meet KRD General Subdivision Guidelines. 

 

 

Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation: Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation 

(DAHP) commented that due to the proximity to Wilson Creek and the potential for encountering cultural 
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resources, they are recommending a professional archaeological survey of the project area. 

 

Applicant response: No response from applicant. 

 

Staff response: CDS Staff has provided this comment to the applicant and conditioned this proposal to 

ensure that if ground disturbing or other activities related to the proposed project result in the inadvertent 

discovery of cultural or archaeological materials, work shall be stopped in the immediate area and contact 

be made with the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP).   

 

Community Development Services – Building Department: Community Development Services Building 

Department commented that all new structures proposed will need to be permitted and built to the current Kittitas 

County adopted building codes at time of submittal for construction with the County. They also commented that 

all accesses and roads need to be compliant with the 2018 IFC including Appendix D and Kittitas County Public 

Works requirements. They also mentioned fire flow requirements are per the 2018 IFC including appendices B & 

C and that as development progresses to contact the Kittitas County Fire Marshal’s office regarding fire flow and 

hydrant requirements. 

 

Applicant response: No response from applicant. 

 

Staff response:  CDS staff provided the comments to the applicant and conditioned the proposal to obtain 

building permits and be compliant with fire code and fire flow requirements. 

 

Kittitas County Public Works: Kittitas County Public Works (KCPW) provided comments addressing private and 

public road standards, driveways, utility easements, Urban Growth Area (UGA) design criteria, lot closures, 

access permits, and fire protection. Additionally, KCPW commented about the floodplain and making sure the 

legal description matched the Title Report. 

 

Applicant Response: “There is a distinction in urban growth area between the portion of the UGA that is 

within the airport overlay where densities are restricted as set forth in the overlay text. The city and 

county acknowledge in existing ordinances this distinction. In the UGA that is also within the airport 

overlay county standards for public works should apply as city development standards for public works 

cannot be achieved due to the density restrictions. This complete application as the date of completeness 

to comply with county not city development codes.” 

 

Staff response:  CDS staff provided comments to the applicant and conditioned the proposal to ensure the 

applicant obtains all necessary permits through Public Works and complies with current road standards. 

Current Road standards already include conditions related to the UGA and City standards. There is no 

provision currently in the road standards for different standards within the Airport Overlay District related 

to the Urban Growth Area when it comes to potentially using County or City Road Standards. Any 

subdivision within the Urban Growth Area would be subject to roadway improvements seen in KCC 

12.01.090(E) and KCC 12.04.040: 

 

All land use development activities proposing public or private roads located within Urban Growth Areas 

(UGA) shall follow the guidelines of KCC 12.04.040 

 

12.04.040 Design Criteria within an Urban Growth Area. 

A. Roads proposed within the UGA shall conform and support the road system or grid, Transportation 

Plan and Comprehensive Plan of the affected city. 

B. Roads constructed within the UGA shall comply with the road standards of the affected city or 

Kittitas County Road Standards, whichever is more stringent. The city shall have the final approval 

of the road alignment, geometry and construction requirements. 

C. Utilities constructed within the UGA shall comply with the requirements of the affected city. 
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 Additionally, the applicant shall address survey and engineering changes noted in the Public Works 

comment letter for final plat approval.  

 

CDS has reviewed all of the comments submitted and conditioned this Staff Report to address many of the 

concerns noted. 

 

VII. PROJECT ANALYSIS 

 

In review of this proposal, it is important to consider the goals and policies of the comprehensive plan, applicable 

county code, public and agency comments, any identified environmental concerns and state and federal 

requirements.  Identified below is planning staff’s analysis and consistency review for the subject application. 

 

Comprehensive Plan Consistency: 

The proposal is consistent with the goals and policies of the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan.  The 

subdivision is adequately served by Kittitas County and City of Ellensburg services.  The lots are in the urban 

growth area within an airport overlay zone. This helps to preserve some rural character seen in LU-G4 and can be 

supported by roads and services that can handle growth in compliance with LU-P1. 

 

Consistency with the provision of KCC 17 Zoning: 

The proposal is consistent with the provisions of KCC 17.11 and KCC 17.58 The lots average density 1 lot per 

acre which is consistent with Urban Residential Zoning within an Urban Growth Area and in the Inner turning 

zone of the Bowers Field Airport Overlay zone pursuant to KCC 17.58.050(2). CDS reviewed the project for 

consistency with KCC 17.11 and found that it was consistent.  

 

Consistency with the provisions of KCC 17A Critical Areas: 

This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County Critical Areas Code.  There is a Type S Stream that has been 

identified as Wilson Creek on the far east side of the site.  The stream has a 100’ buffer in the application 

materials which is consistent with Title 17B buffer requirements for shoreline streams. The plat map also contains 

the 100-year floodplain.  The SEPA MDNS was conditioned to protect the creek and its buffer.  CDS staff finds 

the project, as conditioned, consistent with KCC 17A Critical Areas.  

 

Consistency with the provisions of KCC 16.12: Preliminary Plat Subdivision Code: 

This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County Subdivision Code for Preliminary Plats.   

 

Consistency with the provisions of KCC Title 12: Roads and Bridges: 

All roads are required to meet all Kittitas County Road Standards and comply with City of Ellensburg is more 

stringent. 

 

VIII.   RECOMMENDATION 

 

As conditioned below, the application does not appear to be detrimental to the general public health, safety or 

welfare and meets the basic intent and criteria associated with Title 12, Title 13, Title 16.12, Title 17A, Title 

17.11, Title 17.22. 17.58 and Title 20 of the Kittitas County Code, and the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan.  

Staff recommends approval of the Haybrook Farms Ph. 3 Preliminary Plat, subject to the following findings of 

fact, conclusions, and conditions: 

 

Suggested Findings of Fact 

 

1. Matt Willard, authorized agent for Haybrook Land Holdings LLC, landowner, submitted an application for a 

9-lot plat on 1 parcel totaling 14.09 acres of land.  The proposal includes 9 residential lots ranging in size 
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from 1.02 acres to 3.07 acres. The subject parcel is zoned Urban Residential in the Inner Turning Zone of the 

Bowers Airport Overlay zone. It contains an Urban Land Use designation. This property is located inside the 

Ellensburg Urban Growth Area. 

 

2. Site Information:  

 

Total Project Size:  14.09 acres 

Number of Lots:  9 lots 

Domestic Water:  Group B Well (Proposed) 

Sewage Disposal:  Individual Septic Systems (Proposed)  

Fire Protection:  Kittitas Valley Fire & Rescue (Fire District 2) 

Irrigation District:  Kittitas Reclamation District (KRD) 

 

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

 

Access:  Primary access to the site will be a private drive off of Look Road.   

 

3. The Comprehensive Plan Land Use designation is Urban Land Use. 

 

4. The subject property is zoned Urban Residential within the City of Ellensburg Urban Growth Area.  

 

5. The subject property is within the Inner Turning Zone of the Bowers Field Airport Overlay Zone. 

 

6. A Long Plat Application and SEPA Checklist were submitted to Kittitas County Community Development 

Services on June 24, 2022. The application was deemed complete on July 18, 2022. The site was posted 

pursuant to KCC 15A.03.110 on July 20, 2022. One posting site was established near Look Road. A Notice of 

Application was mailed to all state and local agencies/departments with potential interest in the project as 

required by KCC 15A.03.060, as well as to adjacent landowners located within five hundred (500) feet of any 

portion of the boundary of the proposal's contiguous tax parcels on July 26, 2022 and noticed in the local 

county paper of record on July 26, 2022. The comment period for this notice ended on August 10, 2022 and 

comments were transmitted to the applicant on August 16, 2022.    

 

7. An MDNS was issued by Kittitas County on CDS on September 1, 2022.   

 

8. The proposal is consistent with the goals and policies of the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan.  The 

proposed subdivision will be adequately served by County and City of Ellensburg services. Staff has 

conducted an administrative critical area review in accordance with KCC 17A and found that although critical 

areas exist on the parcel, appropriate buffers and mitigations have been recommended to minimize impacts 

and protect these critical areas. 

 

9. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with the Kittitas County Zoning Codes 17.11 and 17.22 and 17.58 

 

10. This proposal is consistent with the Kittitas County 16.12 Subdivision Code for Preliminary Plats. 

 

11. This proposal as conditioned, is consistent with the provisions of KCC Title 12: Roads and Bridges. 

 

12. This proposal is consistent with the provisions of KCC 15 Environmental Policy. 
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13. This proposal is consistent with KCC 17B Shorelines. 

 

14. This proposal, as conditioned, is consistent with KCC Title 20, Fire & Life Safety. 

 

15. This proposal, as conditioned, will meet Kittitas County Road Standards or more stringent City of Ellensburg 

standards. 

 

 

Suggested Conclusions: 

 

1. As conditioned, the development meets the goals, policies and implementation recommendations as set 

forth in the Kittitas County Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2. As conditioned, this proposal is consistent with applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 

 

3. Public use and interest will be served by approval of this proposal. 

 

4. As conditioned, the proposal is consistent with Kittitas County Code Title 16 Subdivision, Title 17 

Zoning, Title 17A Critical Areas, Title 17B Shorelines, Title 15 Environmental, Title 12 Roads and 

Bridges and Title 20 Fire & Life Safety. 

 

 

Suggested Conditions of Approval: 

 

The project shall proceed in substantial conformance with the plans and application materials on file 

submitted on June 24, 2022 except as amended by the conditions herein. 

 

 

1. Building 

 

A. The applicant is responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state and federal rules and 

regulations, and must obtain all appropriate permits and approvals. 

 

B. Environmental and statutory review may be required for all current and future development, construction, 

and improvements. The applicant and/or all future owners of any lot or lots within this subdivision are 

responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal rules, requirements, codes, and 

regulations. It is incumbent upon said applicants and future owners to investigate for, and obtain from the 

appropriate agency or their representative, all required permits, licenses, and approvals for any 

development, construction, and/or improvements that occur within the boundaries of this subdivision. 

 

C. If natural gas is desired for this development, the applicant must work with and get approval from the 

City of Ellensburg’s Gas Division to coordinate construction and layout of gas facilities. 

 

D. All structures will need to be permitted and built to the current Kittitas County adopted building codes at 

the time of construction. 

 

2. Roads and Transportation   

 

A. Road Standards: This application is subject to the latest revision of the Kittitas County Road Standards, 

dated 12/15/2015. A performance guarantee may be used, in lieu of the required improvements, per the 

conditions outlined in KCC 12.01.150. 
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i. Driveways: 

 

a. A driveway shall serve no more than four tax parcels. See Kittitas County Road Standards, 

2015 edition. 

 

b. New access easements shall be a minimum of 30’ wide. The roadway width shall have a 

minimum width of 12’ if the length of the driveway is less than 150’, or 16’ if the length 

of the driveway is more than 150’. 

 

c. Driveways longer than 150’ in length are required to provide a Fire Apparatus Road 

Turnaround meeting the requirements of appendix D in the International Fire Code. 

 

d. Maximum grade shall be 10% 

 

e. Crushed surface depth per WSDOT standards. 

 

f. Maintenance of driveway approaches shall be the responsibility of the owner whose property 

they serve. The County will not maintain accesses. 

 

ii. Urban Growth Area (UGA) 

 

a. Roads proposed within the UGA shall conform and support the road system or grid, 

Transportation Plan and Comprehensive Plan of the City of Ellensburg 

 

b. Roads constructed within the UGA shall comply with the road standards of the City of 

Ellensburg or Kittitas County Road Standards after a joint review decision by the City of 

Ellensburg Public Works and Kittitas County Public Works Departments. The City of 

Ellensburg shall have final approval of the road alignments and geometry. 

 

c. Utilities constructed within the UGA shall comply with requirements of the City of 

Ellensburg.  

 

iii. Other  

 

a. If over 100 cubic yards of material are displaced during construction, a grading permit shall be 

required. If over 500 cubic yards, an engineered grading permit shall be required. If the 

applicant plans on applying for final plat prior to building, a bond for construction shall be 

required 

 

b. Prior to the final platting process, a Civil Review of the plans will be required by Public Works. 

If the applicant is getting an engineered grading permit, the Civil Review will be included in 

the permit 

 

c. All plats must show the acceptance signature of the County Engineer. The acceptance block 

shall be as follows (per KCC 16.24.170): 

 

 
EXAMINED AND APPROVED 
This _____day of _____, A.D., 20___. 
______________________________ 
Kittitas County Engineer 
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d. Contact the Kittitas County Rural Addressing Coordinator at 509-962-7523 to obtain addresses 

prior to obtaining a building permit. A parcel cannot receive a building permit or utilities until 

such parcel is identified with a 911 address. 

 
e. Mailboxes must be approved the U.S. Postal Service. Mailbox locations are site specific. 

Contact your local Post Office for location and design standards before beginning construction. 

 

f. All accesses and roads need to be compliant with the 2018 IFC including Appendix D. 
 

3. Survey 

 

A. Engineer and Surveyor of Record shall be on final plat. 

 

B. A Title Report shall be submitted and the legal description on the Title Report shall match the legal 

description on the final plat. 

 

C. Controlling corners shall be noted, and property corners set. 

 

D. The boundaries along Wilson Creek shall be delineated 

 

E. Access easements shall be labeled and the new access easement outside the plat boundaries shall be 

dedicated via separate easement 

 

F. Lot Closures shall be submitted. Computer sheets shall be submitted with the final plat showing the 

closure of plat boundaries, blocks, lots or any tract. It is the responsibility of the Professional Licensed 

Surveyor (PLS) to ensure the lot closures are correct and accurate. 

 

4. Water/Sewer 

 

A. In accordance with KCC 13.35.027, the applicant shall provide one of the following documents before 

final plat approval: 

 

1. A letter from a water purveyor stating that the purveyor has adequate water rights and will 

provide the necessary water for the new use 

2. An adequate water right for the proposed new use 

3. A certificate of water budget neutrality from the Department of Ecology or other adequate 

interest in water rights from a water bank. 

 

B. All applicants for land divisions shall also submit information on “proximate parcels” held in “common 

ownership” as those terms are defined in WAC 173-539A-030 and otherwise demonstrate how the 

proposed new use will not violate RCW 90.44.050 as currently existing or hereafter amended. 

 

C. Failure to obtain mitigation before commencement of an activity requiring mitigation shall be a code 

violation subject to enforcement under Title 18 KCC. 

 

D. In accordance with KCC 13.04.090, a minimum of one soil log for each proposed lot where individual 

sewage disposal systems are contemplates must be completed prior to final approval. 

 

E. A group B water system must be installed and approved with a state ID# issued. A well site inspection 

must be performed by the Kittitas County Public Health Department prior to drilling the well. Mitigation 

for the 9 proposed lots must be provided. 
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F. Any Ground Water withdrawals over 5,000 gallons per day shall require authorization from the 

Department of Ecology. 

 

 

5. Other 

 

A. Applicant must meet all state and federal regulations 

 

B. Taxes must be paid in full on all tax parcels involved in this land use actions as required by Washington 

State Law (RCW 84.40.042 & 84.56.345) prior to final plat recording 

 

C. The applicant shall provide evidence to CDS of project consistency with KRD General Subdivision 

Guidelines prior to final approval. 

 

D. All sheets of the final mylars shall reflect plat number LP-22-00003 and an accurate legal description 

shall be shown on the face of the final plat. Engineers and Surveyors need to cognizant of the 

requirements related to Final Plats (KCC 16.20) and Survey Data and Dedications (KCC 16.24). The 

final plat must be submitted in full conformance with these chapters of Kittitas County Code; non-

compliant mylars will be rejected and returned to the applicant. A final plat number will be assigned 

when CDS receives your final plat application. This file number will also be required on the face of the 

final plat. 

 

E. Any work done within 200 feet of the Ordinary High Water Mark (OHWM) that is subject to the 

County’s Shoreline Master Program (SMP) shall obtain shoreline permits from the county and any state 

or federal agency prior to starting work. 

 

6. Plat Notes 

 

A. The following plat notes shall be recorded on the final mylar drawings: 

 

1. Environmental and statutory review may be required for all current and future development, 

construction, and improvements. The applicant and/or all future owners of any lot or lots within 

this subdivision are responsible for compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal rules, 

requirements, codes, and regulations.  It is incumbent upon said applicants and future owners to 

investigate for, and obtain from the appropriate agency or their representative, all required 

permits, licenses, and approvals for any development, construction, and/or improvements that 

occur within the boundaries of this subdivision. 

 
2. All development must comply with International Fire Code. 

 
3. An approved access permit will be required from the Department of Public Works prior to 

creating any new driveway access or performing work within the county road right-of-way. 

 
4. The approval of this division of land provides no guarantee that use of water under the ground 

water exemption (RCW 90.44.050) for this plat or any portion thereof will not be subject to 

curtailment by the Department of Ecology or a court of law. 

 
5. Metering is required for all new uses of domestic water for residential well connections and usage 

must be recorded in a manner consistent with Kittitas County Code Chapter 13.35.027 and 

Ecology regulations. 
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6. Any further subdivision or lots to be served by proposed access may result in further access 

requirements. See Kittitas County Road Standards. 

 
7. A public utility easement 10 feet in width is reserved along all lot lines. The 10-foot easement 

shall abut the exterior plat boundary and shall be divided by 5 feet on each side of interior lot 

lines. Said easement may also be used for irrigation.  

 
8. A hydrant system, or other system as approved by the Fire Marshal, shall be installed and 

operational to support required fire flow before building permits are issued. 

 
9. The subject property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known as an 

airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or 

inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibrations, or 

odors). Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. 

 
10. The property is located within the Airport Overlay Zoning District in which a variety of airport 

aviation activities occur. Such airport aviation activities may impact the use of your property. 

 

 

In addition to the conditions noted above, the following MDNS conditions shall also apply: 

 

A. Critical Areas 

 

1.  All final surveys shall include denotation of Wilson Creek and it’s 100’ buffer. 

 

2.  All final surveys shall include denotation of boundary of the 100-year floodplain and floodway. 

 

B. Cultural Resources 

 

3.  Should ground disturbing or other activities related to the proposed subdivision result in the 

inadvertent discovery of cultural or archaeological materials, work shall be stopped in the immediate 

area and contact be made with the Washington State Department of Archaeology and Historic 

Preservation (DAHP).  Work shall remain suspended until the find is assessed and appropriate 

consultation is conducted.  Should human remains be inadvertently discovered, as dictated by 

Washington State RCW 27.44.055, work shall be immediately halted in the area and contact made 

with the coroner and local law enforcement in the most expeditious manner possible. 
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